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BSA Plandome Troop 71

BATTLESHIP COVE, Fall River, MA

Weekend Trip
Feb. 14-15, 2004

Battleship Cove Museum Contact Numbers:      508-678-1100     800-533-3194
Supplementary Info Packet

We will be attending a special Scout overnight aboard the Battleship Massachusetts, anchored in the Fall River. You will have the chance to tour the battleship, a submarine, a destroyer, 2 PT boats, and many indoor exhibits of W.W.II memorabilia, including items donated by relatives of Troop 71 members.

We will be sleeping inside the ship in regular bunking spaces used by sailors during World War II. 

We will leave from the Plandome Village Hall on Saturday morning, February 14th. We will stop for a quick lunch at a turnpike rest area on the drive up. 

Aboard the Battleship, we will be served Saturday dinner, Sunday breakfast, and a box lunch for the drive home. Snacks and mementos are available from the Ship’s Store. Bring extra funds to cover Saturday lunch, any snacks, and your personal purchases.

CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT LIST: 
Wear your Scout Uniform (shirt, pants, and Troop 71 cap)

Although we will be indoors, it can get chilly during the night, and you will be walking outdoors between ships.

Equipment

Clothing

Backpack




Sleeping Bag


Warm Jacket

Wool hat 


Sweatshirt w/hood

Pillow 


Underwear 

extra shirt/pants


Pajamas

Sneakers





Personal Hygiene
Soap in container

Toothbrush

Toothpaste

Towel

Return: we will be back in Manhasset between 2PM and 5PM Sunday. 

Directions to Battleship Cove

From New York State and Points North West
Take Massachusetts Turnpike to route 495 South; follow to Route 24 South; take Toute 24 South to Fall River and take Exit 7 (State Route 79); take Davol Street Exit (2nd Exit) and follow the signs (Waterfront, Heritage State Park, or Battleship Cove) along the waterfront to Battleship Cove.

SHIP’S STORE:    Currently being renovated.
OVERNIGHT CAMPING PACKAGE INCLUDES: 
· Berthing in crew's quarters 
· Full dinner, breakfast and box lunch prepared and served on board 
· Personalized orientation, movies about Navy ships and Navy life 
· Admission to Marine Museum lecture program 

· Snack bar, picnic area, gift shop 
· Major Motion Pictures 
· Storyteller* 
· Morse Code Classes* 
· Living History Experience* 
Movies ! 

Two new feature films are shown every night to capacity crowd.  Sample movie titles include Iron Will, Encyclopedia Brown, Natty Gahn, and movies from the Ghostwriter Series.  Boys and Girls (and adult campers too) can join the Ghostwriter team and help solve an exciting mystery!  Weird messages...missing backpacks..odd creatures with goggle-eyed masks...and secret codes.  Bring a pen and paper with you and help crack the secret codes to solve the mystery!
 

Storytellers ! 

David Mello and Joyce Pinsonnault, both master storytellers, entertain our overnighters, with American Jump stories and African and American folk tales on alternating weekends.  David and Joyce have been delighting young people for many years with their delightful yarns performed in front of full house crowds.  "Crabs Magic Eyes" and "Skeleton Woman" were recent tales that drew standing-room-only crowds of both children and adults.  David and Joyce are very talented and therefore much in demand.  

Morse Code Classes !

New!  Morse Code Classes, instructed by Amateur Radio Licensees, are held aboard the battleship in Radio III, located on the second platform deck.  Radio III was the emergency radio room as well as the code school for sailors aboard the battleship.  Now restored to its original configuration, Radio III can accommodate up to 12 students at a time who, armed with headphones and keys, are trained to send and receive simple Morse Code letters and phrases.  Fun for all!

Living History Experience!

Relive the Pont-du-Hoc invasion with the 2nd Rangers Company D!  The date is June 6, 1944.  The place...somewhere aboard a warship in the English Channel.  You have been training for weeks, and now it's time to see all that training and hard work pay off.  What is the objective of the operation?  What equipment will you need to complete your mission?  Where is the enemy?  Come join the 2nd Rangers as they prepare for their daring mission -- storming to the beach and scaling the cliffs to take control of the guns on Pont-du-Hoc.  Find out what this crew had to do to be the first group to complete their mission during the Invasion of Normandy (D-Day).

Ship Histories 

  

Battleship Massachusetts 

Destroyer Joseph P. Kennedy Jr. 

Submarine Lionfish 

Hiddensee 

PT Boats 

Bell UH-1M Iroquois Helicopter 

Japanese Suicide Attack Boat 

North American Trojan Trainer Plane 

Landing Craft (Mechanized) 

USS Fall River 

Battleship Massachusetts
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Battleship Massachusetts was built in Quincy, Massachusetts at the Fore River Shipyard of the Bethlehem Steel Corporation. The ship was launched on September 23, 1941 and holds the record as the heaviest ship ever launched in Quincy. "Big Mamie", as her crew knew her, was delivered to the Boston Navy Yard in April 1942 and commissioned the following month. 
Following her shakedown period Battleship Massachusetts went into action on November 8, 1942 as part of Operation Torch, the invasion of North Africa. While cruising off the city of Casablanca, Morocco, the Battleship engaged in a gun duel with the unfinished French battleship Jean Bart, moored at a Casablanca pier. In this battle, Massachusetts fired the first[image: image23.jpg]


 American 16" projectile in anger of World War II. Five hits from Big Mamie silenced the enemy battleship, and other 16" shells from Battleship Massachusetts helped sink two destroyers, two merchant ships, a floating dry-dock, and heavily damaged buildings and docks in Casablanca. 
The ship returned to Boston for refitting and resupply and in February 1943 went through the Panama Canal to join the action in the Pacific, where she would remain for the remainder of her 3 1/2 years of active service. Assigned to the Southwest Pacific, the Battleship saw action in the New Guinea-Solomons area and participated in the invasion of the Gilbert Islands in November 1943, the invasion of the Marshall Islands in January 1944, the powerful carrier strikes against Truk in February 1944, and a series of raids against Japanese bases in the Western Pacific and Asia. 
Following a bombardment of Ponape Island in May 1944, Battleship Massachusetts returned to Bremerton, Washington for modernization and a well-deserved rest for her crew. In September 1944 the ship returned to action in the invasion of Palau Islands and acted as an escort for the fast carrier task forces using her 5", 40mm, and 20mm guns to defend the carriers against enemy aircraft. 

Big Mamie's 16" guns pounded Iwo Jima and Okinawa before those islands were invaded in 1945, and by July of that year she was off Japan with the Third Fleet. The Battleship bombarded the Imperial Iron and Steel Works at Kamaishi, and then sailed south to bombard a factory at Hamamatsu. Returning to Kamaishi, Battleship Massachusetts fired the last American 16" projectile of the war. 
With peace achieved, "Big Mamie" returned to the United States and operated with the Pacific Fleet until mid-1946, when she was ordered deactivated. The Battleship remained in the Reserve Fleet in Norfolk, Virginia until she was stricken in 1962 from the Navy Register and ordered sold for scrap. However, her wartime crew had held annual reunions since 1945 and lobbied to save their ship as a memorial. With the assistance of Massachusetts school children, they raised enough money to bring Big Mamie to Fall River in June 1965. She was opened to the public two months[image: image24.jpg]


 later. Now the centerpiece of Fall River's revitalized waterfront and one of the five National Historic Landmark ships at Battleship Cove, "Big Mamie" with her guns trained fore and aft in the posture of peace, stands ready to welcome visitors from around the nation and across the world as she has for more than a quarter century. 

Battleship Massachusetts at Dry Dock
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Wednesday, November 4, 1998 
For the first time in 46 years the USS Massachusetts felt the rush of water along her sides as her bow cut through the seas enroute to dry-dock in Boston, MA. This is her first visit to Boston since 1942 when her crew of more than 2,000 men enjoyed a brief respite from World War II. She left Boston enroute to the Pacific Ocean where she fought in 33 battles, from Guadalcanal to Tokyo. Returning to the United States in 1945 she was decommissioned in 1947, the last time she was at sea under her own power. Her last time at sea was in June 1965 when she was towed from Portsmouth, VA to Fall River, MA. 
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At 6:30 AM, November 4, 1998 she gracefully exited her berth at Battleship Cove. It was smooth sailing under the Braga, Mt. Hope and Newport Bridges out of the Bay and into open waters. The 300 mile, 4 day journey to Boston had begun. 

Saturday, November 7, 1998 
Battleship Massachusetts makes its way through Boston Harbor. She enters the dry-dock as gracefully as she exited her berth. 
Photos below show her in dry-dock after the water has been pumped out. Workers have been power washing and scraping the growth off her bottom around the clock and as of November 13 they are about 70% done. A hull survey will be the next order of business.
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As of December 2, 1998 
Work is progressing very well. The shipyard estimates it is slightly ahead of schedule and expects to increase momentum in the next few weeks. The final completion date of March 1, 1999 will be met! 
Inspections of the vessel have been completed. The results of this survey have indicated the need for doubler plating at the wind (waterline area). Effectively, the vessel will have a second skin of plate at the wind around the ship with the exception of the stern where existing plating is well intact. Approximately 225,000 pounds of steel will be installed. Other areas of the vessel show some need for plating in minimal amounts. Leaking rivets have been identified throughout the vessel. Most of these will be blasted and covered with epoxy, which will preserve the existing conditions. It has been determined that both outboard propellers must be removed to gain access to the stern boss. 
65% of the sea chest blanks have been fabricated and 20% have been installed. Hull coating and blasting have begun. The propeller removal has begun. It is anticipated they will be removed within the next week or so.
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As of February 2, 1999 
The shipyard estimates it is still slightly ahead of schedule. 
Steel repairs are the lead item, which have driven this overhaul. As of this date there are 52 plates erected. 42 plates are completely welded and tested. A total of 4 plates remain to be installed. It is anticipated they will be completed by the second week in February. As of today, 169,720 pounds of new steel have been installed on the vessel. 
In an effort to preserve the existing hull conditions for decades to come a process called "Red Hand Epoxy" was implemented. This process essentially encapsulates the existing hull protecting it from further deterioration, such as caused by erosion, electrolysis and marine life. Over 10,000 square feet of this epoxy system has been installed. 
The underwater hull coating system is in its final stages. To date over 3,000 gallons of paint have been applied to the vessel's hull, encompassing a total area of 130,000 square feet. The paint is applied in four coats by means of airless spray guns. 
A survey accomplished after the initial hull blasting has shown the need for additional rivet repairs. These repairs are made by welding the rivets to the adjacent parent metal, and by the application of Red Hand Epoxy in selected areas. This has been accomplished to over 2,000 rivets. 
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The vessels hull is assembled by means of riveted strakes (plates). These riveted joints make up for approximately 20% of the vessels hull area. These joints have been deteriorating over time and required attention. Red Hand Epoxy has been installed over these joints to provide a lasting protection barrier.
101 sea chest hull steel blanks have been installed and tested satisfactory to date. Another 7 have to be installed prior to completion
Both outboard propellers have been removed from the vessel and are being polished and coated for preservation. An exhibit stand is being manufactured for both propellers so they may be viewed by the public. Each propeller weighs approximately 36,000 pounds and has a span of 17'-0". It will surely generate considerable visitor interest. 
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Battleship Massachusetts Returns Home to Fall River 
March 13, 1999
Battleship Massachusetts docked in Battleship Cove, Fall River at approximately 3:30, Saturday, March 13, 1999. Fall River Mayor Edward Lambert and many other dignitaries and civic officials will be on hand to greet the vessel on her arrival.

The ship fired a 21 gun salute from her secondary battery as she passed under the bridge and the United States Navy Band will play to welcome “Big Mamie” home. Thousands of residents lined the Fall River waterfront to witness this historic event.
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Destroyer Joseph P. Kennedy, Jr.
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Intended to protect high-value battleships from enemy torpedo boats, the first destroyers were called torpedo boat destroyers. They gradually came to be called destroyers, and in World War II they not only protected battleships but aircraft carriers, cruisers, and merchant ships as well. [image: image25.jpg]



USS Joseph P. Kennedy, Jr. was named for President Kennedy's older brother, a naval aviator who was killed in the explosion of his bomber in August 1944. (Robert F. Kennedy, brother of Joseph, served aboard DD-850 at one time as a Radarman.) USS Kennedy was built in Quincy, Massachusetts and commissioned in December 1945. 
Following her commissioning, she served with the Atlantic and Mediterranean fleets. During the Korean War the ship conducted shore bombardment and acted [image: image26.jpg]


as a screening ship for aircraft carriers launching strikes against the Communist positions. During the blockade of Cuba in October 1962, USS Kennedy was the first vessel to stop a Soviet-chartered ship. A boarding party inspected her cargo to ensure she was not carrying any missile parts bound for Cuba. 
On display at Battleship Cove since 1974, USS Kennedy is a National Historic Landmark and is the home to the Commonwealthâ€™s official memorials to Bay State service members who gave their lives in the Korean and Vietnam Wars. She represents the largest type of destroyer built by the United States in World War II and is the only example of a Gearing Class American destroyer on display anywhere.
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Submarine Lionfish
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The Pearl Harbor attack was a crushing blow to the United States Pacific Fleet, but Japanese planners had not considered striking the submarine base at Pearl Harbor with its fuel storage, repair and torpedo shops, training facilities, and the submarines that would within days receive the order: "Execute unrestricted submarine warfare against Japan." 
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Â  

Day and night, from the surface and from submergence, the Navy's elite submarine force brought the war to the enemy. Every enemy ship was fair game, even the submarine's deadliest enemy, the destroyer. And submarines did more than sink ships. One submarine sent a landing party into Japan to blow up a train and it is rumored that another took the time to watch a horse race in Japan through their periscope! Dick O'Kane aboard USS Tang made routine runs into Truk Lagoon to pick up downed American aviators. But submarines paid a price. 3,505 American sailors of the submarine force and 52 submarines remain on eternal patrol. 
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USS Lionfish was built at the Cramp Shipyard in Philadelphia and commissioned in November 1944 at Portsmouth, New Hampshire. A pre-snorkel sub, she operated on batteries while underwater and when surfaced, four diesel engines powered her at a top speed of about 20 knots. 
USS Lionfish entered Japanese waters on April 1, 1945. With targets few and far between, Lionfish assisted in the rescue of crewmembers of downed B-29 bombers. Lionfish also sunk a 100-ton schooner in a surface action. During her second war patrol, Lionfish fired torpedoes at a surfaced I-class Japanese submarine and recorded explosions and breaking-up noises. 
Submarine Lionfish was decommissioned after World War II but recommissioned for Korean War service. She was deactivated a second time in 1953 and became a reserve training submarine in 1960 at Providence, Rhode Island. In 1972, Submarine Lionfish was placed on permanent loan with the USS Massachusetts Memorial Committee and joined Battleship Massachusetts at Battleship Cove. USS Lionfish is a National Historic Landmark. 

Submarine Lionfish at Dry Dock
[image: image12.jpg]



March 1, 1999
Submarine LIONFISH was towed to Boston through the Cape Cod Canal on March 1, 1999. Upon arrival in Boston, she was delayed entering dry-dock due to weather delaying the departure of BATTLESHIP MASSACHUSETTS. 
April 29, 1999 
The vessel had many apparent areas were the hull was breached. This was evident by the constant shift in trim. Once she was on dry-dock her hull poured water escaping from inboard tanks through the exterior shell plating. There were approximately (22) holes ranging from 1/4" to 8" in diameter. Many of the existing welds were severely wasted away and leaking. 
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The bow and stern plating had deteriorated to the point were some was no longer present at all. This made it possible for water to egress into the vessels adjacent flooding tanks and spaces. 
The exterior hull plating at the wind and water strake had suffered dearly from decades of weather and electrolysis. Pits and deep scars were evident throughout the structure.
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Repairs Accomplished 


Vessel was dry-docked on a graving dock to expose her hull for repairs. The entire hull was high-pressure waterblasted to remove all marine growth. The hull was then sandblasted to remove rust; scale and any remaining paint. 
All existing holes were either welded with new insert plates or doubled with a second layer of steel plating. Approximately 500 linear foot of seam welding was accomplished to resecure the hull plating. Clad welded was accomplished on many of the deep pits and scars, restoring the steel to its original property. 
The bow and stern were completely rebuilt with over 20 tons of new steele plating shaped and formed to its original design. The new plating was shaped in place and welded to existing structure. Many internal structural members were replaced to add stability to the repairs. 
All remaining hull openings were closed off with steel plating. These areas consisted of these chests, tailshaft voids, overboards, and drains. 
Over 6,000 square feet of hull was painted with an underwater epoxy system consisting of over 500 gallons of paint. 
A new fender system is being installed which will protect the vessel from abrasion damage from its mooring. 
She is Currently being painted with the final coat of paint and is expected to depart from the shipyard on Monday May 10, 1999. 
This project has employed the efforts of over 50 union mechanics and technicians who have ensured her survival for decades to come. 


Hiddensee 

Designed and built in 1984 at the Petrovsky Shipyard 01714 in Rybinsk, near Leningrad (now called St. Petersburg) USSR, Hiddensee was the second of five ships of this class to be purchased by the former German Democratic Republic. 
The ship was originally commissioned in the East German National People's Navy as the Rudolf Engelhofer, named after a revolutionary war sailor and Bavarian Red Army commander who was killed during a 1919 uprising. She carried pennant number 772, which was changed to 572 in 1989. 
This Tarantul I Class vessel had a significant coastal defense mission. Tactics dictated that she would attack any naval threat to the East German coast with her large and long-range STYX antiship cruise missiles. Significant defensive armament and systems were intended to ensure survivability and success in this role. Among the many well-engineered systems aboard the vessel are the use of maintenance-free titanium plumbing, an extensive magnetic silencing system, and her lightweight construction. These systems, her high speed, and her overall good design ensured that she was well configured for her mission. 
Following German unification, the vessel was recommissioned in the unified German Navy and renamed Hiddensee after a large environmentally protected island in the Baltic near Hiddensee's original base at Dranske. She was decommissioned in April 1991, and then reactivated and transferred to the U.S. Navy in November 1991 for technical review, test and evaluation. 
Hiddensee arrived in the United States in December 1991 aboard a lift ship, and was prepared for operation as a true threat-representative asset capable of assuming a challenging aggressor role for fleet exercise and training scenarios. In these roles, she operated from January 1992 to September 1993 from the Navy's Solomons, Maryland facility in the Patuxent River. 
During an initial 3-month period, about 20 (half a crew) former East German officers and technicians who had served on Tarantul I Class ships provided assistance and training to a small civilian U.S. crew. A total of 50 underway periods were conducted in the Chesapeake Bay and Virginia Capes areas. Active underway operations ceased in September 1993 following a major U.S. government budget reduction. However, Hiddensee made self-powered range runs in September 1994 and July 1995 for project inspections. On October 25, 1996, Hiddensee joined the fleet at Battleship Cove. 

Climbing aboard Hiddensee, one gets the feeling that the East German sailors have just gone ashore for supplies. The sailors who lived and fought aboard her during her career have left behind an imprint that resonates in each compartment. Hiddensee is virtually intact and once onboard, visitors will be intrigued to find that the ship's consoles and controls are labeled in Russian, the tongue of her builders and the official language of the navies of the now disbanded Warsaw Pact. A visit to this ship should not to be missed! 

PT 617 and PT 796
 

PT 617
Elco Class Motor Torpedo (PT) Boat
Launched July 28, 1945
At Elco Naval Division, Bayonne, New Jersey
Placed in service September 21, 1945 with Squadron 42 which commissioned September 17, 1945
Length: 80 feet, 3 inches
Beam: 20 feet, 7 inches
Draft: 5 feet
Displacement: 54 tons
Armament: Four roll-off racks for Mark XIII 22.5 foot torpedos; one 40 mm gun; one 37mm gun; one 20 mm gun; two twin .50 cal. machine guns; 2 - 4 depth charges; smoke generator; 2 Mark 50 5 inch rocket launchers
PT 617 was restored to WWII configuration by PT Boats, Inc., the national organization of PT veterans. Rebuilding was a five-year project culminating with a rechristening ceremony August 1985.
Of three Patrol Torpedo boat manufacturers for the US Navy, Elco produced the most. Ptâ€™s operated in the English Channel, the Mediterranean, the Caribbean, the Aleutian Islands, the Eastern seaboard and the Pacific. The Normandy Invasion and the Battles of Midway, Soloman Islands, Leyte Gulf are a few examples of actions. 43 squadrons were commissioned with a total of 531 USN boats. Utilized for everything from mail delivery, transporting VIPS and pilot rescues to making propaganda films and attacking enemy shipping, these wooden-hulled craft proved their worth many times over and they did it with only 331 KIAâ€™s out of an estimated 64,000 serving in over 80 shore suport bases, 19 official mother ships known as tenders or AGPâ€™s and the boats.
PT 617 is a National Historic Landmark.
PT 796
Higgins Class Motor Torpedo (PT) Boat
Launched June 23, 1945
At Higgins Industries, New Orleans, Louisiana
Completed October 26, 1945
Reclassified Small Boat November 16, 1945, transferred to Operational Development Force
Length: 78 feet, 9 inches
Beam: 20 feet, 1 inch
Draft: 5 feet, 3 inches
Displacement: 48 tons
Armament: Two 21-inch torpedos on roll-off racks; two twin .50 cal. machine guns; one 40 mm gun; one 37 mm gun; one 20 mm gun; smoke generator; two Mark 40 5 inch rocket launchers.
Although never assigned to a WW II PT squadron, PT 796 patrolled Caribbean and East Coast waters and was temporarily part of Post War . In 1961, despite the fact that 109 was an Elco-built PT, this Higgins boat stood in for JFKâ€™s boat in his inaugural parade.
When completed 796 carried full armament; however, her role changed in post war times and as it did, armament was removed. Until 1970, 796 was assigned to Naval Ship Research and Development Laboratory, Panama City, Florida for high speed towing work to develop specialized equipment for Vietnam river patrols.
Decommissioned July 7, 1970, the boat was signed over to J.M. "Boats" Newberry, founder of PT Boats, Inc., and the organization that restored her.
On August 14, 1975, VJ Day, 796 was welcomed to Battleship Cove where she continues to be exhibited inside an authentic Quonset hut.
PT 796 is a National Historic Landmark.
PT Boats Inc. Archives and Library
PT Boats, Inc. is an organization established by veterans of WWII PT service to preserve the story of Patrol Torpedo Boats and the men who manned and supported the "Mosquito Fleet"
Headquartered in the suburb of Memphis Tennessee, the majority of the organizationâ€™s photographic collection are kept here. Additionally, manuals, charts, periodicals of the era, some logs and diaries, film and factory blueprints are housed here. Other holding include memorabilia ranging from a Japanese bugle, to propaganda leaflets and Shellback certificates.

Bell UH-1M Iroquois Helicopter
Of all the images from the Vietnam War, it is probably the television news footage of the chubby, omnipresent UH-1M Iroquois, or "Huey" helicopter that has remained most visible in the American memory. 
Bell manufactured more than 10,000 of these helicopters since production began in the 1950's, making the Huey the most produced aircraft since World War II. Originally designated HU-1, from which they take the name "Huey", the UH-1 series of helicopters remain in service worldwide with both military and civilian users. 
The UH-1M on display at Battleship Cove carries the number 66-00609, indicating that it was the 609th UH-1 manufactured in 1966. Built as an UH-1C version, it was converted to an UH-1M in May 1971 with the addition of a more powerful Lycoming turbine engine and modified fuel cells. As a UH-1M, it was armed with two XM-200 rocket pods firing a total of sixteen 2.75" rockets; two SM-21 rotary barrel 7.62mm flexible miniguns; and two 7.62mm M-60 machine guns mounted on pintles for the door gunners. 
This machine served two tours in Vietnam. First assigned to the 14th Aviation Battalion of the 23rd Infantry Division (America), the helicopter was based in Chu Lai in the northern part of South Vietnam. On March 1, 1969 the helicopter was hit by hostile fire and had a "hard landing." Sent to the United States for repairs, the helicopter returned to Vietnam and remained in country until 1972, when it went to Bell in Fort Worth, Texas for a complete refit. The last assignment for the helicopter was with the 1st Battalion of the 26th Air Cavalry Squadron of the Massachusetts National Guard. 
Through the extensive efforts of Vietnam Veterans of America Chapter 207 of Westport, Massachusetts, whose members restored it to its original appearance, the helicopter was placed on loan to the USS Massachusetts Memorial Committee, Inc. and dedicated at Battleship Cove on May 30, 1993.

Japanese Suicide Attack Motorboat (Shinyo Boat)
The Shinyo (meaning Divine Wind) boat is an example of the several suicide weapons used by the Japanese towards the end of World War II. Other weapons of this type included bomb-laden aircraft (Kamikazes) and manned torpedoes. The bow of a Shinyo was loaded with explosive charges that would detonate upon the boatâ€™s impact with an enemy vessel. 
Shinyo boats were employed in the Philippine Campaign and thousands were ready to defend Japan against the planned Allied invasion of Japan (Operations Olympic and Coronet) in the Fall of 1945. The Shinyo squadrons, however, were highly visible to Allied air and sea forces and many were destroyed by American fighter sweeps. 
The Shinyo on display at Battleship Cove, believed to be one of the only two or three in the United States, is of unique design, with a high air scoop for the engine and a glassed-in cockpit. These two features would have made this Shinyo highly visible to radar. Battleship Cove's Shinyo was obtained and restored by PT boats of Memphis, Tennessee. 

North American T-28 Trojan Trainer Plane
The performance of military aircraft increased greatly during World War II, with propeller-driven aircraft exceeding the sound barrier and jet aircraft going into combat for the first time. The American armed forces had trained their aviators in the legendary SNJ/T-6 "Texan" during the war, but with increase in aircraft performance, a new trainer of greater power and maneuverability was needed. 
The North American T-28 Trojan, developed during the last years of World War II, filled that need. A rather stubby aircraft with a sharply cantilevered wing, designed by the company that had produced the rough, tough P-51 Mustang fighter, the T-28 provided student aviators and their instructors with a trainer that approached or exceeded the performance of many of the war's high performance fighter aircraft. 
The T-28 was a two-seat trainer that allowed an instructor the opportunity to monitor the progress of the student pilot in basic flying skills, instrument flight, aerobatics, air-to-ground tactics, and carrier landing qualification. A stable and "forgiving" aircraft, the T-28 trained the generation of pilots who entered our armed forces after World War II. 
With the involvement of the United States in Southeast Asia during the early 1960's the T-28 went into service with the South Vietnamese and Loation air forces. Trojans were used for air strikes, psychological warfare, and special operations. Other T-28's were sold to air forces around the world. 
The T-28 on display at Battleship Cove is in original Navy colors and markings. It was used as a carrier landing qualification aircraft in Pensacola, Florida for many years. In 1975, during a "hard" landing aboard USS Lexington, the aircraft sustained a crack in the main wing spar, making it ineligible for further carrier landings. Flown to the Naval Air Station at South Weymouth, Massachusetts, the T-28 was subsequently declared excess by Naval Air Systems Command and placed on permanent loan to the USS Massachusetts Memorial Committee, Inc.

Landing Craft, Mechanized (LCM)
The enemy's view from the shoreline must have been ominous. After the ferocious pre-invasion bombardment concluded, the clearing dust and smoke revealed scores of small craft headed toward the beach, with many more behind them, circling and awaiting orders to proceed to the line of departure. In each small craft were up to 120 American assault troops, or a single Sherman tank. 
There were hundreds of such craft scheduled for the assault. They were Landing Craft, Mechanized (LCM). The brought American and Allied troops to beaches from Casablanca to Leyte, from Normandy to Kiska, from Salerno to Sagami Wan. Their armor could stop a .30 caliber bullet and their capacious fuel tanks not only made them extremely buoyant if damaged; they could cruise almost 800 miles unloaded. The "M", meaning mechanized, meant that the landing craft could carry vehicles up to and including a 30-ton tank. 
The LCM Mark 3 on exhibit at Battleship Cove was built by Higgins Industries in Louisiana, probably during the 1950's. Prepared for landing on a hostile beach, the LCM had a crew of four, two .50 caliber machine guns, and armor around the wheelhouse. An eminently adaptable watercraft, the LCM was also used for ferrying troops and equipment, for resupply and medical evacuation, and for various liaison duties. At least one LCM was in use as late as 1987 with the Boston Harbor Islands Park System

USS Fall River
The Fall River (CA-131) was launched on August 13, 1944 by New York Shipbuilding Corporation in Camden, New Jersey. The ship was sponsored by Mrs. Alexander C. Murray, wife of the mayor of Fall River. Fall River was commissioned on July 1, 1945, with Captain D. S. Crawford in command. 
On October 31, 1945, Fall River arrived at Norfolk, out of which she sailed in experimental development operations until January 31, 1946. The cruiser was assigned to JTF 1, organized to conduct Operation "Crossroads", atomic weapons tests in the Marshall Islands in the summer of 1946. To prepare for this duty, Fall River sailed to San Pedro, California where from February 16 to March 6 she was altered to provide flagship accommodations. Arriving at Pearl Harbor on March 17, she embarked Rear Admiral F. G. Fahrion, commander of the target vessel's group for the tests, and with she sailed in the Marshalls between May 21 and September 14.
After west coast training, Fall River served a tour of duty in the Far East as flagship of Cruiser Division 1 from January 12 to June 17, 1947. She returned to Puget Sound Navy Yard, where she was placed out of commission in reserve on October 31, 1947.
The bow of Fall River now graces the entraance to Battleship Cove in Fall River, Massachusetts. It remains as a testament to those brave sailors who fought for our country from aboard her decks.
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